1969

## **Beneficial Life Insurance Company v. John Ellwood Dennett : Appellant's Brief**

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an action wherein Plaintiff, Beneficial Life Insurance Company, sought to recover possession of real property in an unlawful detainer action against Defendant, John Elwood Dennett.

## DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

The Trial Court granted summary judgment in favor of Defendant.

## RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Appellant asks that the judgment of the lower court be reversed and that its Motion for Partial Summary Judgment be granted.

## STATEMENT OF FACTS

On October 26, 1964, Defendant and his wife executed a mortgage on real property located at 2879 Millicent Drive, Salt Lake City, Salt Lake County, Utah, in favor of Doxey-Layton Company, which mortgage was assigned to the plaintiff. Plaintiff foreclosed its mortgage in the District Court of Salt Lake County and purchased the property at Sheriff's sale on August 5, 1966. (Case No. 160928 Supp. R. 1-64) Defendant subsequently commenced an action against the Plaintiff, which, among other things, dealt with the same property. This action was dismissed with prejudice as against the Plaintiff on September 7, 1967. (Case No. 174076 Supp. R. 1-33) In connection with the dismissal Defendant executed the following General Release: (R. 34, 35)

## GENERAL RELEASE

/s/ H. D.      /s/ J. E. D.

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, and for a reciprocal and mutual release the undersigned do, by these presents, release and discharge BENEFICIAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY and all of its officers, directors,

agents, representatives and employees, and Milan B. Robbins, Jay A. Meservey and Eugene Watkins, of and from all and all manner of actions and causes of action, judgments, executions, debts, dues, claims and demands of every kind and nature whatsoever, which against the said Beneficial Life Insurance Company, its officers, directors, agents, employees, and representatives, and Milan B. Robbins, Jay A. Meservey and Eugene Watkins they ever had, or now have, or which they or their heirs, executors, or administrators may now, or may hereafter, have by reason of any cause of action whatsoever involving the subject matter set forth in a Complaint filed with the District Court for Salt Lake County, State of Utah, entitled *John Elwood Dennett vs. Beneficial Life Insurance Co., Milan B. Robbins, Jay A. Meservey, Eugene Watkins, Melvin Teerlink, Doxey Layton Company, Newspaper Agency Corporation and The Salt Lake Tribune*, being Civil No. 174076, and by reason of any alleged wrongful foreclosure or other grievance or cause of action or problem whatsoever in connection with the taking of title and foreclosure proceedings by Beneficial Life Insurance Company relative to properties at 3879 Millicent Drive, Salt Lake City, Utah and the properties at 2359 East 3080 South, Salt Lake City, Utah, which at one time were owned by Mr. and Mrs. Bernard G. Schact, and any other cause whatsoever to date. It is the intent of this Release to be broad and all inclusive so that any cause of action whatsoever which the undersigned may have to date against the said Beneficial Life Insurance Company, its officers, directors, agents, repre-

sentatives, employees, and Milan B. Robbins, Jay A. Meservey and Eugene Watkins, shall be forever waived and released; *expressly reserving*, however, any cause of action which the undersigned may have against Doxey Layton Company and Melvin Teerlink by reason of the facts and matters alleged in an action which is pending in the District Court, Third Judicial District in and for Salt Lake County, State of Utah, entitled *John Elwood Dennett vs. Beneficial Life Insurance Co., Milan B. Robbins, Jay A. Meservey, Eugene Watkins, Melvin Teerlink, Doxey Layton Company, Newspaper Agency Corporation and The Salt Lake Tribune*, being Civil No. 174076.

Dated: September 6th, 1967.

/s/ John E. Dennett

John Elwood Dennett

/s/ Herta K. Dennett

Herta K. Dennett

On the same date, September 6, 1967, Plaintiff, as seller, and Defendant, as buyer, entered into a Uniform Real Estate Contract relative to the property which is the subject of this action, wherein Defendant agreed to pay the sum of \$34,613.59, was given conditional credit for a down payment of \$3,613.59 represented by a judgment note, and agreed to pay the balance of \$31,000.00 at the rate of \$266.00 per month, with the first payment due on October 1, 1967. (R. 51-58, 58-63, 309) The Uniform Real Estate Contract contained the following provisions:

16. In the event of a failure to comply with the terms hereof by the Buyer, or upon failure of the Buyer to make any payment or payments when the same shall become due, or within thirty days thereafter, the Seller at his option shall have the following alternative remedies:

A. Seller shall have the right, upon failure of the Buyer to remedy the default within five days after written notice, to be released from all obligations in law and in equity to convey said property, and all payments which have been made theretofore on this contract by the Buyer, shall be forfeited to the Seller as liquidated damages for the non-performance of the contract, and the Buyer agrees that the Seller may at his option re-enter and take possession of said premises without legal processes as in its first and former estate, together with all improvements and additions made by the Buyer thereon, and the said additions and improvements shall remain with the land, become the property of the Seller, the Buyer becoming at once a tenant at will of the Seller; or

B. The Seller may bring suit and recover judgment for all delinquent installments, including costs and attorney's fees. (The use of this remedy on one or more occasions shall not prevent the Seller, at his option, from resorting to one of the other remedies hereunder in the event of a subsequent default); or

C. The Seller shall have the right, at his option, and upon written notice to the Buyer, to declare the entire unpaid balance hereunder at once due and payable, and may elect to treat this contract as a note and mortgage, and pass title to the Buyer subject thereto, and proceed immediately to foreclose the same in accordance with the laws of the



State of Utah and have the property sold and the proceeds applied to the payment of the balance owing, including costs and attorney's fees; and the Seller may have a judgment for any deficiency which may remain. In the case of foreclosure, the Seller hereunder, upon the filing of a Complaint, shall be immediately entitled to the appointment of a receiver to take possession of said mortgaged property and collect the rents, issues and profits therefrom and apply the same to the payment of the obligation hereunder, or hold the same pursuant to order of the court; and the Seller, upon entry of judgment of foreclosure, shall be entitled to the possession of the said premises during the period of redemption.

16D. The Buyers agree, if the attached Judgment Note is not paid strictly at maturity, that Seller may immediately and without notice declare a forfeiture under the provision of paragraph 16A herein, and Buyer shall lose all interest of any kind whatsoever in the said properties; and Seller shall be entitled to immediate possession.

*Addendum*

Remedies provided under Paragraph 16(A) of this contract shall not be available to Seller at any time after the attached Judgment Note has been paid. All other remedies shall be available at any time.

Defendant made the payment of \$266.00 that was due on October 1, 1967, but made no payments thereafter. No payment was made on the judgment note, and it was not paid at maturity. (R. 51-53, 75-77) Plaintiff is still the owner of the fee title, and is shown as the fee title owner on the records of the Salt Lake County Recorder. (R. 51-53, 75-77, 309)

Eight days later, on September 14, 1967, Defendant filed a Chapter XII proceeding in the United States District Court for the District of Utah. He was adjudged a bankrupt in that proceeding on December 4, 1967. (R. 335) His adjudication as a bankrupt was appealed to the United States Court of Appeals for the Tenth Circuit, where it was affirmed. (R. 38-40, 398-400) The Supreme Court of the United States denied certiorari on June 2, 1969, 23 L.Ed. 451.

On January 12, 1968, (R. 38-40, 398-400) the Referee in Bankruptcy executed the following Order, authorizing Beneficial Life Insurance Company to go forward in enforcing its rights under the Uniform Real Estate Contract, and ordering Beneficial Life Insurance Company to account to the Bankruptcy Court for the monies received from the sale of the property:

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  
FOR THE DISTRICT OF UTAH  
CENTRAL DIVISION

In the Matter of	Bankruptcy No. B-1153-67
JOHN ELWOOD DENNETT,	
Bankrupt.	ORDER

The petition of Beneficial Life Insurance Company came on regularly for hearing in the Bankruptcy Court on January 11, 1968, at 4:45 o'clock p.m., before the Honorable Bruce S. Jenkins, Referee in Bankruptcy, at Room No. 224, U.S. Courthouse, Salt Lake City, Utah, which hearing was held pursuant to notice duly given by the Clerk of the Bankruptcy Court on January 2, 1968, to

John Elwood Dennett, for himself, and to J. Thomas Greene, attorney for Petitioner. The Petitioner, Beneficial Life Insurance Company was represented by its attorneys, J. Thomas Greene and Milan B. Robbins. John Elwood Dennett was not present in Court, although the matter was held in abeyance for several minutes awaiting his arrival. It was observed in the record that written as well as actual notice of the hearing, was given to Mr. Dennett. The Court having fully reviewed the file, including an appraisal report submitted by a Court-appointed appraiser, Sterling Webber, under date of January 4, 1968, and having heard arguments and being fully advised, and good cause appearing therefor,

**IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED:**

1. The petition of Beneficial Life Insurance Company for a disclaimer of any interest of the bankrupt or any representative of the bankrupt in and to real property described in the Uniform Real Estate Contract dated September 6, 1967, between Beneficial Life Insurance Company as Seller and John Elwood Dennett as Buyer, a copy of which Uniform Real Estate Contract is attached to the Petition herein, is held in abeyance pending further information and evidence relative to value and as to other liens on the property.

2. The Petition of Beneficial Life Insurance Company for leave to take judgment against the said John Elwood Dennett and Herta K. Dennett in an action pending in the District Court of Salt Lake County, State of

Utah, in accordance with the Waiver, Entry of Default and Stipulated Judgment attached to the Petition, and to reduce the Judgment Note attached to the Petition to judgment, is hereby granted.

3. The Petition of Beneficial Life Insurance Company for leave to serve a Notice of Forfeiture upon the said John Elwood Dennett pursuant to the terms of the Uniform Real Estate Contract dated September 6, 1967, a copy of which is attached to the Petition, and to pursue all of its rights and remedies thereunder, is hereby granted.

4. The Petitioner, Beneficial Life Insurance Company is required to account to the Court for any monies and values which may be derived from the sale of the premises over and above the unpaid balance due and owing to the Petitioner, Beneficial Life Insurance Company, under the said Uniform Real Estate Contract dated September 6, 1967, plus expenses and costs which may be added under the terms of the said Uniform Real Estate Contract, expenses and costs which may be incurred or taxable in proceedings to exercise rights pursuant to leave granted herein, and any expenses and costs which may be incurred in connection with obtaining possession, the sale and preparation for sale of the subject premises. The Petitioner, Beneficial Life Insurance Company, is further required to file a report with the court relative to the disposition of the properties in question together with an accounting relative thereto.

Dated: January 12, 1968.

BY THE COURT:

/s/ Bruce S. Jenkins

BRUCE S. JENKINS

Referee in Bankruptcy

Room No. 224, U. S. Courthouse

Salt Lake City, Utah 84101

Served a copy of the foregoing Order upon John Elwood Dennett by mailing a copy thereof, postage prepaid, c/o John Elwood Dennett at 1243 East 2100 South, Salt Lake City, Utah, and also at 2879 Millicent Drive, Salt Lake City, Utah, this 12th day of January, 1968.

/s/ J. Thomas Greene

On January 12, 1968, the following notice was mailed to Defendant by counsel for the Plaintiff: (R. 54, 55)

January 12, 1968

**CERTIFIED MAIL**

Mr. John Elwood Dennett

1243 East 2100 South

Salt Lake City, Utah

Dear Mr. Dennett:

As you know, this law firm represents Beneficial Life Insurance Company in connection with a certain Uniform Real Estate Contract dated September 6, 1967, entered into between Beneficial Life Insurance Company as Seller and John Elwood Dennett as Buyer, and covering properties at 2879 Millicent Drive, Salt Lake City, Utah. The said Uniform Real Estate Contract is in default and has been in default for some time. The amount in default which was due and payable as of January 1, 1968, is \$4,411.59.

You are hereby notified that the Seller, Beneficial Life Insurance Company,

ficial Life Insurance Company, elects to exercise all of its rights and remedies pursuant to Paragraphs 16A and 16D of the said Uniform Real Estate Contract. Accordingly, you are notified that:

Beneficial Life Insurance Company hereby declares a forfeiture of the contract, and of all interest of any kind whatsoever in the said properties which you ever had or might claim. You are further notified that Beneficial Life Insurance Company is entitled to immediate possession of the premises.

Beneficial Life Insurance Company elects to re-enter and take possession of the premises together with all improvements and additions thereon immediately.

If you fail within five days after receipt of this written notice to remedy the default, in lawful unencumbered monies of the United States, Beneficial Life Insurance Company shall be released from all obligations in law and in equity to convey said property to you, and the payment which has heretofore been made in the amount of \$266.00 shall be forfeited to Beneficial Life Insurance Company as liquidated damages for non-performance of the contract.

This notice is served pursuant to leave granted by the United States District Court by the Honorable Bruce S. Jenkins, Referee in Bankruptcy, as is evidenced by Order date January 12, 1968, a copy of which is enclosed herewith.

Please govern yourself accordingly.

Yours very truly,

/s/ J. Thomas Greene

J. Thomas Greene

A copy of the notice was served personally on Defendant on February 19, 1968. (R. 54, 55, 58-63)

At the time of the service of the January 12, 1968 notice, the sixty-day judgment note, which had matured and was in default, had not been paid and only the one \$266.00 contract installment had been paid. (R. 51-53, 75-77) The contract, therefore, had been in default since November 1, 1968, with the 30 day grace period having expired on December 1, 1968. Defendant made no tender, or attempt to make payment or to rectify the default and delinquency, as called for in the January 12, 1968 notice, within five days after service of the notice upon him. (R. 51-53, 75-77)

Defendant subsequently filed a petition with the Referee in Bankruptcy asking that the relief granted to Plaintiff in the order of January 12, 1968 be stayed until the matter was ruled upon by the Tenth Circuit Court of Appeals. The Referee in bankruptcy did not act immediately on this petition, in fact he took it under advisement for a period of several months. (R. 398-400)

On May 27, 1968, counsel for the Plaintiff mailed the following letter to the Defendant: (R. 144, 145)

Mr. John Elwood Dennett, Esq.  
1243 East 2100 South  
Salt Lake City, Utah  
Dear Mr. Dennett:

There is enclosed herewith a copy of a letter dated May 21, 1968 from Salt Lake City Corporation, City Board of Health, to Beneficial Life Insurance Company concerning a complaint re-

garding the property at 2889 Millicent Drive. As you can see, the City Board of Health insists that the properties be free of weeds and refuse at all times.

Beneficial Life Insurance Company, as the owner of the property, is vitally concerned that the ordinance be complied with, and that the grounds for the complaint be eliminated immediately. As you know, Beneficial Life has declared a forfeiture of your interest in the premises, and takes the position that you have no legal interest in the properties. We consider that your continued possession and occupation of the premises is wrongful, and that it is in violation of law. Accordingly, your continued insistence upon maintenance of possession pending judicial determination of your status as a bankrupt is, of course, subject to an accounting to Beneficial Life for loss of rentals, loss of value, unlawful detainer, costs and attorneys fees and damages. Naturally, anything you do or fail to do which harms the property or detracts from its value must be accounted for.

You should take immediate steps to comply with the Board of Health requirements. If you fail to do so, Beneficial Life will assert as a new and independent ground for dispossession and damages any failure to comply with Board of Health requirements in violation of the City ordinance.

Please govern yourself accordingly.

Yours very truly,

/s/ J. Thomas Greene

J. Thomas Greene

On July 15, 1968, the United States Court of Appeals



for the Tenth Circuit affirmed the decision of the United States District Court for the District of Utah, which had adjudged Defendant a bankrupt. (R. 36, 37) On September 30, 1968, the Referee in Bankruptcy denied Defendant's Motion to Reconsider the Order of January 12, 1968, which motion had been under advisement by the Referee for several months. On October 3, 1968, Defendant was served with a notice to vacate by mailing and posting, (R. 144, 145) and on October 21, 1968, Defendant was personally served with the same notice to vacate. (R. 58-63) The notice read as follows:

#### NOTICE TO VACATE

TO: John Elwood Dennett

1. You are hereby notified that because the default under that certain Uniform Real Estate Contract dated September 6, 1967, was not remedied pursuant to the Notice dated January 12, 1968, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof as though fully set forth herein, you are now a tenant at will of the premises located at 2879 Millicent Drive, Salt Lake City, Salt Lake County, Utah, said property being more specifically described as follows:

All of lot 1, OAK HILLS, Plat "H", except the Easterly 3 feet thereof. Also the Easterly 18 feet of the property next adjacent and on the West side of said lot, described as being 18 feet wide and having the same north-south dimensions as said Lot 1, the north-south bounds of which are either the same as or parallel to the western boundary of said Lot 1.

2. You are further notified to vacate said premises within five (5) days from service of this Notice upon you. If you fail to do so, you will be considered in unlawful detainer of said premises and legal proceedings will be commenced against you to recover possession of said premises and treble damages for the period of unlawful detention, together with all costs and expenses of said action.

Dated this 3rd day of October, 1968.

Cannon, Greene, Nebeker &  
Horsley

By /s/ J. Thomas Greene

/s/ Milan B. Robbins

Milan B. Robbins

Attorneys for Beneficial Life  
Insurance Company

400 Kennecott Building

Salt Lake City, Utah 84111

On October 23, 1968, Defendant tendered to the Plaintiff the sum of \$7,052.00. (R. 71) The tender was rejected. (R. 75-77) On October 28, 1968, Plaintiff filed an unlawful detainer complaint against Defendant in the District Court of Salt Lake County. (R. 1-15) In response to the Complaint Defendant initially filed only a Motion to Dismiss. (R. 20) He thereafter filed an Answer which contained only a general denial, (R. 50) and an Amended Answer. (R. 58-63) Defendant claimed in his Amended Answer, his Affidavits (R. 73-77) and in hearings before the Court, (R. 398-400) that he was no longer the owner of the property, but that he had conveyed it to C. Dwayne Harrison in January of 1968.

C. Dwayne Harrison also filed an Affidavit (R. 69) in which he alleged that he took possession of the property on January 1, 1968, and was still in possession. No document of transfer was ever produced, however. Notwithstanding the claim of transfer of ownership, at a hearing on September 25, 1969 (R. 384-386) Defendant admitted that he was then claiming to be the owner of the contract interest.

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