Brigham Young University Law School

BYU Law Digital Commons

Utah Supreme Court Briefs (1965 –)

1970

Beneficial Life Insurance Company v. John Ellwood Dennett: Respondent's Brief

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

ARGUMENT

Judge Croft's scholarly opinion bases the decision on the notices, the actions of the appellant after the notices, and the tender, and in doing this, he perceptively analyzes the cases, applies the facts. and reaches a completely correct decision. However, even if he were wrong on these points, there are additional reasons he doesn't even touch upon which would justify the same result. His theories, based upon the notices, the conduct and the tender, which are under attack by appellants will be defended by this response, but going beyond that, the theories which Judge Croft disregarded in reaching his decision, which would produce the same result, will also be brought to the attention of this court as additional reasons for up holding the decision of Judge Croft.

Appellants cite seven cases as authority for their position, but they confuse the issue by not citing them in chronological order. The oldest case is Forrester vs. Cook, 77 U 137, 292 P 206 (1930). The most recent case they cite is Van Zyverden vs. Farrer, 15 U 2d 367, 393 P 2d 468 (1964). By considering them in chronological order, one can observe the growth of the law in Utah in forfeiture actions.

Moreover, we are dealing here with the "rule of each case." Each Supreme Court opinion is the "law of the case" which it decides, and rests upon the facts and issues which it decides. There are admittedly some similarities in the cases cited, but the similarities are few when compared with the differences, and the general propositions stated are only somewhat helpful. There are no cases in point, and every case decided can be easily distinguished on the facts.

Respondant has undertaken to do a "canned brief" on each case so that the propositions for which the case stands can be understood in light of the context in which the propositions are announced and in light of the facts of the particular case in which the opinion was rendered.

The "canned briefs" are set forth in the appendix to the respondant's brief.

POINT I.

FORRESTER VS COOK IS DISTINGUISHABLE ON THE FACTS AND IS NOT CONTROLLING

The Forrester vs. Cook case (77 U 137, 292, P 206, 1930) is really not very helpful. It took a later decision to articulate and differentiate the difference between self-executing and non-self executing provisions in a forfeiture clause in a contract. (Leona vs. Zuniga, infra). But that is wholly unimportant. The provision in the Forrester conract was self-executing. It stated:

"In the event of a failure to comply with the terms hereof by the buyer or upon failure to make any payment when the same shall become due, or within sixty days thereafter, the seller shall be released from all obligations in law and equity.... (etc.) . . . the buyer at once becoming a tenant at will of the seller."

The notice which the seller served upon the buyer said the following

"You and each of you will further take notice that by reason of your failure to make the payments hereinbefore referred to, you and each of you under the terms of said agreement have become and now are and are hereby declared to be the tenants at will of Diana Forrester; and as such you and each of you are hereby required to vacate the property . . . and surrender possession thereof

to said Diana Forrester within five days from the date of the service of this notice upon you."

The buyers first refused to comply, then later, but prior to trial, disclaimed any interest in the property and tendered possession to the seller.

The law suit was not over possession, but over the question of damages and attorney fees. The opinion, in fact, states so expressly: (Page 208)

"The cause was thereupon tried upon the issues of damages and an attorney's fee only."

The trial court allowed trebled damaged and denied an attorney's fee. Both parties appealed. The only issues which were before the Supreme Court for decision were (1) Whether the claim for the hold-over was "rent" or "damages," damages being subject to being trebled and rent not being subject to being trebled, and (2) whether an attorney's fee would lie.

The Supreme Court made the statement which Appellants cite on page 25 of the brief in order to establish at which point the buyers became tenants at will of the sellers.

POINT II.

THE CASE OF LEONA VS. ZUNIGA DOES NOT STAND FOR THE PROPOSITION FOR WHICH APPELLANT CITES IT.

In reading the Leona vs. Zuniga case (84 U 417, 34 P 2d 699, 1934) and re-reading the case, and reading and re-reading what appellant claims for it, it becomes increas-

ingly unclear how this case could in any way relate to the issues at bar in the instant case.

The Leona vs. Zuniga case was indeed a very important milestone in the growth of the law, but it doesn't stand for anything helpful in this case. The Leona vs. Zuniga case holds that the seller's complaint for possession didn't state a cause of action because it did not allege that seller had given buyer notice of seller's election.

Now how that can possibly bear on anything relevant in this case is something appellant should explain better. There was no way the Supreme Court could decide (in the Leona vs. Zuniga case) the sufficiency of a notice that was never served.

The dictum is interesting, however. It distinguishes between self-executing and non-self-executing provisions in a contract, and gives a good example of each kind. It observed that the Leona-Zuniga contract was unlike the Bergman vs. Lewis contract (68 U 178, 249 P 470), which was self-executing, and like the Howorth vs. Mills (62 U 574, 221 P 165) contract, which was not self-executing, and which required notice from seller to buyer that the seller had made the election availabe to him in order to put the buyer in unlawful detainer status.

The articulation of the rationale in the Leona vs. Zuniga case is very helpful. The court clarified the reason for the holding. It said that in non-self-executing type forfeiture contracts, the seller merely gains the right to make elections upon the buyer's default. He may elect to stand up on his right to declare a forfeiture, or may elect to waive the forfeiture and to enforce the contract according to its terms. The object of the language

is to give the vender his election. If he wants to avail himself of his right to avoid the contract, he must make an unequivocal election evidencing that intention. A contrary rule would place the buyer in a dilemma. If the buyer vacates the premises, he may be confronted with an action to enforce the contract. If he fails to vacate, he may be met with a suit for possession.

In one respect, the Leona vs. Zuniga case is similar to the case at bar. Respondant certainly agrees that the case at bar is not self-executing. But the similarity ends there. Aside from the fact that the Leona-Zuniga contract did not have an addendum, like the case at bar, which took away the forfeiture remedies entirely, the forfeiture clause itself is vastly different.

By juxtaposing the two clauses, the differences can be readily ascertained. The Leona-Zuniga contract provided as follows:

"In the event of a failure to comply with the terms hereof, by buyer, or upon failure to make any payment when the same shall become due, or within 60 days thereafter, the seller, at his option, shall at his option be released . . . (etc).

The clause at the case at bar provides as follows:

"Upon the failure of the buyer to make any payment or payments when the same shall become due, or within 30 days thereafter, the seller, at his option shall have the following alternative remedies, (a) Seller shall have the right, upon faiure of the buyer to remedy the default within five days after written notice, to be released. . . . (etc).

In the Leona-Zuniga contract, the seller had the auto-

matic option, after 60 days of continuous default in making payments, to be released. If that seller, (Leona) had only acted upon that option, had only given the notice of his election that option entitled him to give, and had only alleged in his complaint that he had, by written notice, exercised the option he was entitled to exercise, the Supreme Court probably would not have mandated the district court to sustain the buyer's demurrer to the seller's complaint.

In the instant Beneficial Life Insurance case, as distinguished from the Leona-Zuniga case, the appellant has no rights at all until there is a 30 day default. But only after 30 days, when it has some choices to make, can it make some choices. It can proceed with remedy (b) (file suit to recover the delinquent payments), or with remedy (c) (foreclose the contract like a mortgage) without any further notice at all. Remedies 16(b) and 16(c) are available without giving any notices first.

However, if it chooses remedy (a), it must first of all give notice that the contract is in default and demand that the default be remedied within five days after notice. It must then patiently await the expiration of five days. If the buyer does not remedy the default in the five days, seller has some new choices. It can do several things at that point:

- 1. Do nothing at all.
- 2. Treat the contract as being in full force and effect, and proceed to enforce it.
- 3. Exercise the remedies available in paragraph 16(b).

- 4. Exercise the remedies available in paragraph 16(c).
- 5. Exercise its remedy available in paragraph 16(a) to be released from his obligations in law and equity to convey the property, forfeit the payments made as liquidated damages (under certain very strict conditions, not present here), and re-enter and take possession of the property (if it can do so without breaching the peace), which, if it succeeds in doing, would make the respondant a tenant at will of the appellant.

There is only one hitch. If respondant elects not to do nothing at all, and not to treat the contract as being in full force and effect, and not to excess he remedies provided in 16(b) and 16(c), it must give an additional notice that it has elected to exercise the rights which are conditionally given to it in paragraph 16(a).

But the appellant doesn't have any rights to exercise until after the contract is 30 days in default, AND after the appellant has given notice to remedy the default within 5 days, AND after five days have elapsed that the respondent has not remedied the default.

Now if all of that happens, the appellant can start making its choices. The appellant might choose to do any number of things, but if it chooses to go on with remery 16(a), it must notify respondant that it is going to do that and not something else. And if it does notify respondant that it is going to go on with remedy 16(a), and respondant doesn't allow the appellant to re-enter the premises, as the contract provides, then the appellant would have succeeded in putting the respondant in statu-

tory unlawful detainer status, and could file its suit f_{0r} possession.

Now the unlawful detainer statutes require that one in unlawful detainer status is entitled to still additional notices in writing, requiring in the alternative the performance of (the breached) conditions or covenants, or the surrender of the property. It also provides that within three days after the service of the notice, the tenant (or other interested parties) may perform (the breached) conditions or covenants and hereby save the (contract) from forfeiture. (See 68-36-3(5).

Now no decision in Utah has gone as far as to describe each of the notices required, mainly because it hasn't needed to in order to decide the cases. Mr. George Mc. Millan, who argued the case for the Van Zyverdens in their case against Seagull Investment Co. (15 U 2d 367, 393 P 2d 463) urged this court to consider the additional notices required by the unlawful detainer statute itself, but since this court found the Van Zyverden notices insufficient to place the Van Zyverdens in unlawful detainer status, it was unnecessary to decide the question Mr. McMillan urged in his brief, namely, what notices a person in unlawful detainer status is entitled to, and what he might do to save his contract, once he is in that status. When we get to thhe Van Zyverden case in this brief, we will examine the argument in greater detail.

But to end the consideration of the Leona vs. Zuniga case with an unanswered question, we might ask ourselves why appellant would cite a case which holds that at least some notice must be given in order to state a cause of action. No one quarrels with that proposition, but how

is appellant helped by it? We need to examine cases where notices were served, not where they weren't served, and look into the facts and rationale to find out how and when they might be served and what they have to say in order to be legally sufficient.

POINT III.

THE CHRISTY VS. GUILD IS IN POINT IN PART BUT IS DISTINGUISHABLE ON THE FACTS FROM THE INSTANT CASE.

Of all of the cases appellant cites, Christy vs. Guild (101 U 313, 121 P 2d 401, 1942) is its strongest case, but it can easily be distinguished from the case at bar. The case is set forth in "canned brief" form in the appendix, but briefly, the transaction involved a \$3,200.00 home on which the buyer made no down payment, but agreed to pay the entire purchase price in deferred installments of \$20.00 for six months, then \$25.00 for six months, then \$30.00 for six months for the duration of the contract.

The Supreme Court did not favor us with the language of the contract, as it usually does in forfeiture cases, but merely paraphrased it. On the very last page of the opinion, under the second paragraph of headnote (5), we read the following:

"In the present action, respondants in their complaint set out the contract, which provided that upon default of the vendees, the vendors might elect to terminate the contract and upon such termination might retain as liquidated damages the payments theretofore made by the vendees, the latter thereupon becoming tenants at the will of the former.

Since this case is one of the most important cases which appellants cite, it was thought wise to get the verbatim language before us, so that it can be compared with the instant case. The files and records of the Salt Lake County Clerk's office contain the contract, which is reproduced, in part in the appendix. The exact wording of the salient provisions of the contract reads as follows:

"On failure of the parties of the second part,...to make any of the payments when due or for fifteen days after they become due, ... or on faailure to comply with the provisions of this agreement in any other respect, all payments made under this contract may, at the option of the parties of the first part, become forfeited ... as liquidated damages, ..."

Juxtaposing that language with the language of the Beneficial Life conract we can draw the comparisons and disinctions. The language in this (The Beneficial) contract, already set forth earlier in this brief, provides that only after 30 days default, and only after the failure of the respondant to remedy the default after 5 days written notice, does the appellant have the elections the seller in the Christy-Guild contract automatically had upon 60 days default. There is quite a difference. Both the instant contract and the Christy-Guild contract require the seller to make an affirmative, overt election and to give the buyer notice that the election was made. But there the similarity ends. In the Christy-Guild contract, the seller had the right to make an election after 60 days of unremedied continuous default in making installments.

In the instant (Beneficial) contract, the seller had the right to serve a demand after 30 days of unremedied continuous default. To say there is an obvious difference is an unpardonable understatement.

The Christy vs. Guild case is a baffling case, however. The buyers tendered partial performance of the defaults prior to suit. They were required, by the notice of election, to bring current \$130.00 in arrearages, pay \$297.20 in back taxes and insurance, and made improvements on the property they had agreed to make. The buyers tendered the arrearages, but did not tender the back taxes and insurance and did not make the improvements.

The buyers apparently felt secure in the tender of the partial performance required by the notice. They at least felt secure enough to argue that it was a question for the jury as to whether there was a default, their theory apparently being that the partial tender remedied the default.

On appeal, the appellants (in the Christy vs. Guild case) didn't even attack the sufficiency of the notice. The appellants (in that case) simply argued that (1) the default was a question for the jury and (2) that the trial court should have considered the "equities" between the parties and have adjudged the buyers entitled to some reimbursement for the improvements made and the large amount paid on the contract (approximately one-third of the principal plus interest).

The second point seemed to bother the court some, but it found that in light of the fact that the buyers had paid no down payment, only \$20.00 for six months, then \$25.00 for six months, then \$25.00 for six months, then \$30.00 per month thereafter,

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